
1/3 

Board of Directors In-Person/Zoom Meeting 
June 10, 2022, 10:30 am 

Board of Directors: Management: 
Stan Belevici, RCIC (Chair) 
John Burke, RCIC (Vice-Chair) 
Marty Baram, RCIC 
Normand Beaudry, Appointed Director 
Tim D’Souza, Appointed Director 
Richard Dennis, RCIC 
Jennifer Henry, Appointed Director 
Ben Rempel, Appointed Director 
Jyoti Singh, Appointed Director 

John Murray, President & CEO 
Russ Harrington, Chief Operating Officer 
Michael Huynh, Director, Professional Conduct 
Chris May, Director, Public Affairs and 
Communications 
Cathy Pappas, Director, Registration  
Beata Pawlowska, Director, PREP 
Joyce Chow Ng, Controller, Finance 

Jina Dhother, Executive Assistant to the 
President & CEO/Executive Assistant to the 
COO and Recording Secretary 

Alexis Graham, Ministerial Observer Guests: 
Lynn Stivaletti, Goodman Mintz, LLP 

Item Time Topic Purpose Page 
No. 

1 10:30 am 
(5 mins) 

1. Business (S. Belevici)
a) Land acknowledgment
b) Introductions
c) Conflict of Interest Declaration(s)

Approval 
(with motion) 

2 10:35 am 
(5 mins) 

2. Approval of Agenda (S. Belevici) Approval 
(with motion) 

3 10:40 am 
(5 mins) 

3. Approval of Consent Agenda
(S. Belevici)
a) Previous Minutes – November 17,

2021
b) Audited Annual Financial

Statements – June 30, 2021 –
information only

c) Schedule of Board and Board
Committee Meetings

Approval 
(with motion) 

1 - 25 



Meeting of the Board of Directors (Open to the Public) – Agenda  June 10, 2022 

 

 
2/3 

Item Time Topic Purpose Page 
No. 

4 10:45 am 
(30 mins) 

4. Approval of Audited Financial 
Statements for the period July 1, 
2021 - November 22, 2021. 
(R. Harrington/L. Stivaletti) 

• Draft financial statements 
• Draft Auditors’ Report 
• Appointment of College 

Auditors 

Approval 
(with motion) 

26 - 62 

 11:15 am 
(15 mins) 

BREAK   

5 11:30 am 
(20 mins) 

5. Approval of FY 2023 Budget 
    (J. Murray/R. Harrington/J. Chow Ng) 

 
 

Approval 
(with motion) 

63 - 71 

6 11:50 am 
(20 mins) 

6. Effective Date of Specialization 
Program 
(J. Murray/B. Pawlowska) 

Approval 
(with motion) 

72 

7 12:10 pm 
(20 mins) 

7. Approval of Board Committee     
Terms of Reference and 
Appointment of Committee 
Members  
(S. Belevici) 

• Finance and Audit Committee 
• Governance and Nominating 

Committee  

Approval 
(with motion) 

73 - 82 

8 12:30 pm 
(15 mins) 

8. Approval of Working Group Terms 
of Reference and Appointment of 
Working Group Members.  
(B. Pawlowska) 

• Mentoring Working Group  
• Professional Standards Working 

Group 

Approval 
(with motion) 

83 - 94 

9 12:45 pm 
(15 mins) 

9. Appointment of Tribunal 
Committee Members   
(M. Huynh) 

Decision 
(with motion) 

95 - 98 

10 1:00 pm 
(15 mins) 

10. Appointment of Independent      
Complaints Review Officer  
(M. Huynh) 

Decision 
(with motion) 

99 

  (Meeting Closed to the public)   
11  1:15 pm 

(30 mins) 
11. In-Camera Session  

(J. Murray) 
• Outstanding Litigation  

Update   



Meeting of the Board of Directors (Open to the Public) – Agenda June 10, 2022 

3/3 

Item Time Topic Purpose Page 
No. 

12 1:45 pm 12. Adjournment
(S. Belevici)

• Next Board Meeting:
September 29, 2022

Decision 
(with motion) 



Meeting of the Board of Directors 
November 17, 2021 
 
 
 
 
Held In-Person at Staybridge Suites Oakville-Burlington and 
by Zoom  
CONFIDENTIAL  

 

  
5500 North Service Road, Suite 1002 

Burlington, Ontario L7L 6W6 
www.iccrc-crcic.ca 

T: 1-877-836-7543  F: 1-877-315-9868 
5500 North Service Road, bureau 1002 
Burlington (Ontario) L7L 6W6 

 

Board of Directors:  
Stanislav Belevici, RCIC (Chair)  
John Burke, RCIC (Vice-Chair)  
Marty Baram, RCIC  
Richard Dennis, RCIC  
Melissa Harris, RCIC  
Melanie Wen, RCIC  

Christina Ashmore, Public Interest Director  
John Cockerill, Public Interest Director  
Tim D’Souza, Public Interest Director 
Leanne McGeachy, Public Interest Director  
Samantha Psoch, Public Interest Director  
 
 
 

Management:  
John Murray, President & CEO 
Russ Harrington, Chief Operating Officer 
Beata Pawlowska, Director, Professional 
Standards, Research, Education & Policy 
Christopher May, Director, Public Affairs and 
Communications 
Michael Huynh, Director, Professional Conduct 
Lee Tustin, Policy Analyst  
Jina Dhother, Executive Assistant to the 
President & CEO & Recording Secretary  

 

 
 
1. BUSINESS 
 

a) Call to Order 
 

The Chair declared a quorum present and the meeting to be duly constituted for the transaction 
of business at 8:56 a.m. Eastern Time (ET). 
 
With the consent of the meeting, S. Belevici acted as Chair of the meeting and J. Dhother acted as 
Recording Secretary to the meeting. 

 
b) Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality Declarations 

 
The Chair reminded Board members that Board of Directors meetings are confidential and 
discussion should not be disclosed outside of the meeting. The Chair asked for declarations of 
conflict of interest regarding agenda items.  No conflicts were declared.  

 
c) Approval of the Agenda 

 

1



Meeting of the Board of Directors November 17, 2021 

©2022 IMMIGRATION CONSULTANTS OF CANADA REGULATORY COUNCIL 
CONSEIL DE RÉGLEMENTATION DES CONSULTANTS EN IMMIGRATION DU 
CANADA 

Page 2 of 8 

A draft agenda was circulated prior to the meeting. J. Cockerill requested that a discussion take 
place regarding complaints and discipline if time allows.  It was agreed that this would be included 
in the discussion of Agenda Item 8(b).   

On motion duly made by R. Dennis, seconded J. Burke, and duly carried, the following resolution 
was passed: 

RESOLVED THAT the Agenda for the meeting, be and is hereby approved. 

2. CONSENT AGENDA

On motion duly made by M. Wen, seconded by J. Cockerill, and duly carried, the following
resolution was passed:

RESOLVED THAT the Consent Agenda items be and are hereby received. 

a) Previous Board Minutes – September 24, 2021
b) Chair’s Report
c) President’s Report & SMT Reports
d) Committee Reports
e) Risk Register
f) Litigation Matters

3. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MINUTES

J. Murray presented an update on the status of the College Transition, ongoing litigation, and
the College French-language name change request.

As noted by C. May at the previous Board meeting, the Council had requested the support of 
Immigration, Refugees and Citizenship Canada (IRCC) in a proposal to change the French-
language name of the College to the term “Ordre” rather than “College”, as “ordre” was more 
commonly understood to refer to a professional regulatory organization, whereas “college” was 
more often used in reference to an educational institution.  After discussion with IRCC and the 
Department of Justice, IRCC had declined to support the proposed change, whereupon the 
Council had withdrawn its request. 

The Board discussed the Council’s ongoing litigation and expressed appreciation for J. Murray’s 
management of these matters.   

4. CHAIR’S REPORT AND PRESIDENT’S REPORT

(a) Chair’s Report

S. Belevici presented the Chair’s Report, noting that he continues to meet with the CEO and Vice-
Chair for biweekly meetings.  S. Belevici thanked J. Burke, J. Murray, and R. Harrington for their
work leading to the Transition to the College.

2



Meeting of the Board of Directors November 17, 2021 
 

  
©2022 IMMIGRATION CONSULTANTS OF CANADA REGULATORY COUNCIL 

CONSEIL DE RÉGLEMENTATION DES CONSULTANTS EN IMMIGRATION DU 
CANADA 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 
He noted that the Council recently conducted transition webinars for members and Regulated 
International Student Immigration Advisors (RISIAs) in English and French.  Both had been well-
attended.  
 
On October 29 and 30, the Chair, Vice-Chair and management team members, together with a 
representative from IRCC, presented at the National Citizenship and Immigration Conference 
hosted by the Canadian Association of Professional Immigration Consultants on the timeline and 
steps proposed for the transition of the Council to the College. Response from conference 
attendees was uniformly positive.  However, several attendees questioned the apparent lack of 
diversity among the four licensee Directors chosen to join the transitional Board.  S. Belevici noted 
that he had explained the requirements of the College Act and the process adopted by the Board 
in selecting the licensee Directors.    
 
S. Belevici also noted that he was exploring the creation of certificates or thank you letters for 
current and past Directors and other individuals who had made a significant contribution to the 
attainment of statutory recognition for the profession. While supportive, Board members noted 
that some care would be required to ensure that appropriate individuals were identified.  It was 
agreed that the Chair and Vice-Chair would work with J. Murray to develop appropriate criteria 
and a process to ensure a consistent approach.  
 

(b) President’s Report 
 

J. Murray presented an overview of key milestones achieved since the inception of the Council in 
2011. The following topics were addressed: 

• ICCRC in the first 10 years 
• Transition to the College 
• Organizational Growth Towards an Employer of Choice 
• Program Upgrades 
• Enhancing Educational Standards 
• Ongoing Compliance 
• Outreach Activities 
• Complaints and Discipline 

 
5. REC 
  
(a) Competency-based EPE 
 

B. Pawlowska presented an overview of the Council’s new, competency-based Entry-to-Practice 
Exam (EPE). The Professional Standards, Research, Education and Policy Department of the 
Council (PREP) led the development of the new EPE for Regulated Canadian Immigration 
Consultants (RCICs) in accordance with PREP’s mandate to ensure the integrity of high-stakes 
exams and academic assessments. This new EPE will be administered to graduates of the Queen’s 
post-graduate diploma program in late February of 2022.  Like the current EPE, this new exam will 
be remotely-proctored, but will be administered as a “closed-book” exam.  Exam support 

3



Meeting of the Board of Directors November 17, 2021 
 

  
©2022 IMMIGRATION CONSULTANTS OF CANADA REGULATORY COUNCIL 

CONSEIL DE RÉGLEMENTATION DES CONSULTANTS EN IMMIGRATION DU 
CANADA 

Page 4 of 8 

 

materials have also been amended to provide clearer guidance on the consequences of unethical 
behavior in exam settings.     

(b) CPD Regulation for RISIAs 
 
B. Pawlowska reviewed the proposed revisions to the Continuing Professional Development (CPD) 
Regulation for RISIAs, noting that the Registration and Education Committee (REC) recommended 
that Board members consider approval. She also noted that this revised Regulation aligns with 
the CPD Regulation for RCICs and will conform the CPD reporting dates for both classes of College 
licensees. A detailed guide to the Regulation is being developed to provide RISIAs with specific 
guidance on compliance. 

 
On motion duly made by R. Dennis, seconded by C. Ashmore, and duly carried, the following 
resolution was passed: 

 
RESOLVED THAT  
The revisions to the Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Regulation for 
RISIAs, in the form presented to the Board, be and are hereby approved.  

 
(c) PME Regulation  

 
B. Pawlowska reviewed proposed revisions to the Practice Management Education (PME) 
Regulation, noting that REC recommended that Board members consider approval. 
 
Major revisions to the PME Regulation included: 

• Removal of the option for a remediation plan - completion of PME courses is 
mandatory.   

• Amendment to section 8 of the Regulation to provide for automatic suspension 
of licensees who do not complete the PME course(s) within the specified time 
limits.    

• Removal of the “Cancelation” and “No-Show” provisions as these have been 
included in other Council policies. 

 
On motion duly made by R. Dennis, seconded by M. Baram, and duly carried, the following 
resolution was passed: 

 
RESOLVED THAT  
The revisions to the Practice Management Education Regulation, in the form 
presented to the Board, be and are hereby approved. 

 
 
B. Pawlowska also addressed the ongoing PME deficiency with the Board of Directors, and the 
plan to address it. PREP has scheduled additional PME courses between January and June of 2022 
to ensure sufficient spaces are made available to accommodate both new RCICs in their first year 
of membership and the deficient RCICs who have not yet completed the mandatory courses.  
 

4



Meeting of the Board of Directors November 17, 2021 
 

  
©2022 IMMIGRATION CONSULTANTS OF CANADA REGULATORY COUNCIL 

CONSEIL DE RÉGLEMENTATION DES CONSULTANTS EN IMMIGRATION DU 
CANADA 

Page 5 of 8 

 

B. Pawlowska noted that the Registration Department would be sending out warning notices to 
all those who are deficient in PME on November 22, 2021; noting a suspension date of March 1, 
2022, followed by revocation for non-compliance taking place by June 1, 2022.  

 
6. GNC 
 
(a) Member AGM Proposal 
 

J. Murray noted that a proposal was submitted to the Council by D. Reid-Moncrieffe, RCIC, for 
consideration at the 2021 Annual General Meeting (AGM). As the AGM has been postponed until 
after the Date of Continuance, and as the College Act does not allow for member proposals to be 
considered at College AGMs, the Governance and Nominating Committee (GNC) has 
recommended that the proposal be provided to the Board for consideration and the member 
advised of the Board’s decision.  
 
On motion duly made by J. Cockerill, seconded by R. Dennis, and duly carried, the following 
resolution was passed: 

 
RESOLVED THAT  
The proposal for By-law amendments submitted by D. Reid-Moncreiffe be 
declined and the proposer advised accordingly

(b) Interim College By-laws and Regulations 
 
J. Murray noted that Council staff have parsed the existing Council By-law and Regulations, and 
have proposed extensive amendments aimed at: 

• Ensuring compliance with the College Act; 
• Ensuring that planned future programs (i.e. Mentorship) can be accommodated without 

amendments post-continuance (we may not have final College By-laws or approved 
government regulations until sometime in late 2022 or early 2023); 

• Removing unneeded governance and other provisions - all but the most basic governance 
provisions have been removed – there will be no immediate need for a Board election, 
for example, but there must be a mechanism to fill Board vacancies should one arise. A 
College governance framework will be developed by the Transitional Board as the new 
regulations and final Board composition become known; and 

• Providing for the College to make policies in key areas – this will provide some flexibility 
to the Transitional Board in the absence of the ability to amend by-laws as needed. 

 
On motion duly made by J. Burke, seconded by M. Wen, and duly carried, the following resolution 
was passed: 

 
RESOLVED THAT  
(1) Council By-law 2021-01 be and is hereby repealed; 

 
(2) Council By-law 2021-02, in the form presented to the Board, be and is hereby enacted 

as the By-law of the Council; 

5



Meeting of the Board of Directors November 17, 2021 

©2022 IMMIGRATION CONSULTANTS OF CANADA REGULATORY COUNCIL 
CONSEIL DE RÉGLEMENTATION DES CONSULTANTS EN IMMIGRATION DU 
CANADA 

Page 6 of 8 

(3) the proposed substantive and non-substantive amendments to the Council
Regulations, in the form presented to the Board, be and are hereby approved; and

(4) the following Council regulations be and are hereby repealed:
(a) Board Election Campaigning Regulation;
(b) Board Officers Appointment Regulation;
(c) Public Interest Director Selection Regulation;
(d) RCIC Entry-to-Practice Exam Regulation;
(e) RISIA Complaints and Disciplinary Proceedings Regulation;
(f) RISIA Entry-to-Practice Exam Regulation;
(g) RISIA Leave of Absence Regulation; and
(h) RISIA Resignation Regulation;

all of the foregoing resolutions to be effective as of 11:59 p.m., ET, November 22, 2021.

7. D&O Insurance

(a) D&O Insurance

R. Harrington provided an update on the Council’s Directors and Officers Liability Insurance (D&O) 
coverage that expires on November 22, 2021. Management is collaborating with its insurance
broker Hunters International (Hunters) to obtain D&O coverage for the College. While the current
insurance market is challenging, with insurers reducing limits, increasing premiums, and declining
current and prospective clients, Hunters has been actively seeking the following:

• Extension of D&O insurance coverage until November 23, 2021, plus multi-year run-
off coverage for the Council from the current carrier.

• A new D&O policy for the College.

Throughout this process, Hunters has expressed concern about the Council’s current D&O 
provider’s refusal to extend coverage to the College.  The provider has taken this position due to 
the many, often spurious, legal challenges brought by members and former members against the 
Council since its inception.   

Given Hunters’ misgivings about the insurance market, Council management proposes the 
creation of a restricted fund from the net assets of the Council in the amount of $4 million to 
effectively self-fund all, or a portion of D&O coverage for the College, to ensure effective coverage 
is in place on the Date of Continuance.  

On motion duly made by T. D’Souza, seconded by S. Belevici, and duly carried, the following 
resolution was passed: 

RESOLVED THAT 

6



Meeting of the Board of Directors November 17, 2021 
 

  
©2022 IMMIGRATION CONSULTANTS OF CANADA REGULATORY COUNCIL 

CONSEIL DE RÉGLEMENTATION DES CONSULTANTS EN IMMIGRATION DU 
CANADA 

Page 7 of 8 

 

Management be and is hereby authorized and directed to create a restricted fund from 
net assets in the amount of $4 million to self-fund Directors and Officers’ liability coverage 
for the College as of November 23, 2021. 

8. Transition Matters  
 
(a) Update on Appointed Directors 
 

J. Murray noted there were no updates available at this time.   
 

(b) Update on Code of Professional Conduct  
 

M. Huynh and L. Tustin presented the draft Interpretation Guide to the Proposed Code of 
Professional Conduct for College Licensees (Code) developed by the Council to assist College 
Licensees in understanding and complying the new Code, which is broader in scope than the 
current RCIC and RISIA codes and prescribes new standards in many areas.   
 
While the Code is not yet final, the Interpretation Guide is intended to provide licensees with 
clarity and direction on the intent of the various sections of the code and will allow for information 
to be updated regularly as best practices evolve once the Code is in final form and in force. 
Directors suggested that an acknowledgment of having read the Code and Interpretation Guide 
should be included in the Annual Renewal process for College licensees.  

 
J. Cockerill noted that many of the Council’s outstanding complaints concerned a small group of 
individuals and asked management’s views on possible actions that could be taken when an 
individual member has multiple complaints made against them.  Could they, for example, be 
suspended on an interim basis immediately? M. Huynh noted that the Discipline Committee Rules 
of Procedure provided for interim suspensions in cases where there was an apprehension of 
ongoing harm to the public, but that the Committee was often reluctant to impose such 
suspensions in the absence of a formal finding of professional misconduct.  Over time, it was 
hoped that the Discipline Committee would develop precedent in favour of asserting this interim 
measure more frequently in appropriate cases.    
 

(c) Draft Annual Report   
 

C. May provided a comprehensive presentation on the draft Council Annual Report. This will be 
finalized and posted on the website by Friday, November 19, 2021.  
 

(d) College Website    
 

C. May provided a presentation on the College website. He noted that anyone accessing the 
Council website will be re-directed automatically to the home page of the College website on and 
after November 23, 2021.  

 
(d) College Branding  
 

7



Meeting of the Board of Directors November 17, 2021 
 

  
©2022 IMMIGRATION CONSULTANTS OF CANADA REGULATORY COUNCIL 

CONSEIL DE RÉGLEMENTATION DES CONSULTANTS EN IMMIGRATION DU 
CANADA 

Page 7 of 8 

 

C. May provided a comprehensive presentation on the development of the College’s brand 
identity.  A licensee launch event is scheduled to take place on Tuesday, November 23, 2021, and 
all Board members will be provided a link to attend. 

 
9. NEXT MEETING 
 

The next Board of Directors meeting will be scheduled after the Date of Continuance once the 
Transitional Board has been established.  

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business before the meeting, on motion duly made by C. Ashmore, 
seconded by M. Baram, and duly carried, the meeting adjourned at 4:54 p.m. ET. 

 
 
 
 

  

Stan Belevici, RCIC 
Chair of the Board 

 Jina Dhother  
Recording Secretary 

 

8



9



10



11



12



September 28, 2021

September 28, 2021

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



 Board Orientation and Proposed Meeting Schedule 
 

Version: 2022-003 
Last Modified: 

 

June 3 2022 

 
 
 

 

Date:  Event: 
March 31, 2022, Q3 F2022 

June 9, 2022 (Thursday) Board Orientation - [In-person Burlington/Virtual] 
June 10, 2022 (Friday)  First Board Meeting - [In-person Burlington/Virtual]  

June 30, 2022, Q4 F2022 
September 15, 2022 (Thursday) FAC Meeting - [virtual] 

September 30, 2022, Q1 F2023 
September 29, 2022 (Thursday) Board Meeting - [location TBA] 
November 17, 2022 (Thursday) FAC Meeting - [virtual] 
December 1, 2022 (Thursday) Annual Meeting of Licensees - [Location TBA] 

December 31, 2022, Q2 F2023 
February 16, 2023 (Thursday) FAC Meeting - [virtual] 
* March 9, 2023 (Thursday) Board Meeting - [location TBA] 

* Going forward, Board meetings will be held in March, June, September and December (AGM) in each year.   
 

25



1/1

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 
Re: 

Date: 

Board of Directors 

Russ Harrington, Chief Operating Officer 
Agenda item 4 Approval of Audited Financial Statements for the period July 1, 
2021 – November 22, 2021
May 18, 2022

Summary: 
Draft audited financial statements for the period ended November 22, 2021, have been 
prepared by Goodman Mintz, LLP.  Management recommends that the draft audited financial 
statements be approved by the Board.       

Requested Action: 

THAT: 
[1] the draft audited financial statements of the Council for the period ended 

November 22, 2021, together with the Independent Auditors Report thereon, each 
in the form presented to the Board, be and are hereby approved; and

[2] any two Directors be and are hereby authorized to sign the Statement of Financial 
Position forming part of such financial statements to evidence such approval.

Discussion/Analysis: 
Continuance of the Council to the College was deemed a “change of control” for financial purposes 
and triggered the need for an audit of the period July 1, 2021 – November 22, 2021. Goodman 
Mintz, LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, Licenced Public Accountants, the public 
accountants of the Council, conducted a virtual examination of documents and interviews relating 
to this period and developed the Independent Auditor’s Report, audited financial statements and 
related documents attached to this memorandum.    

In the absence of a Finance and Audit Committee of the College, L. Stivaletti, CPA,CA of Goodman 
Mintz, LLP provided an overview of the audit plan and work performed in developing the draft 
audited financial statements and draft Auditors Report to the full Board of Directors.  

Attachments: Draft Audited Financial Statements for the College for the period July 1, 
2021 – November 22, 2021 and draft Independent Auditors Report.  

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



1/1

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 
Re: 
Date: 

Board of Directors 

Russ Harrington, Chief Operating Officer 
Agenda item 4 Appointment of College Auditors FY 2022 
May 18, 2022 

Summary: 
The By-law requires the appointment of Public Accountants for the College. Management 
recommends that the current auditors, Goodman Mintz, LLP be re-appointed as the Public 
Accountants of the College for FY 2022. 

Requested Action: 

THAT: 
[1] Goodman Mintz, LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public

Accountants, be and are hereby appointed as the Auditors of the College for the
financial year the College ending June 30, 2022.

Discussion/Analysis: 
Goodman Mintz, LLP, has indicated a willingness to serve as auditors for the coming year. 

62



1/1

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 
Re: 
Date: 

Board of Directors 

Russ Harrington, Chief Operating Officer, Joyce Chow Ng, Controller 
Agenda item 5 Approval of FY 2023 Budget  
May 18, 2022 

Summary: 
The Board of Directors is requested to approve the draft budget for the 2023 financial year of 
the College.  

Requested Action: 

THAT: the draft budget for the financial year of the College ending June 30, 2023, in 
the form attached hereto, be and is hereby approved. 

Discussion/Analysis: 
The draft budget FY2023 report consists of the following sections: 

- Introduction
- Budget Basis
- Summarized Statement of Operations
- Statement of Changes in Net Assets
- Proposed Capital Budget
- Revenues

Attachment(s): 
- College of Immigration and Citizenship Consultants Budget For Fiscal year ending June

30, 2023

63



 

1/8 

 
 
 

College of Immigration and Citizenship 
Consultants  

Budget 
for 

Fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 
  

64



 

2/8 

INTRODUCTION 
• The development of the budget is based on the following: 

o Sufficient assets appropriately allocated to achieve the strategic objectives 
o Funds expended on the transition to the College and IT transformation in 

compliance with the Board’s restriction of assets 
o Budget developed in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
o Budget based upon financial and operational sustainability 

• Management is presenting the budget for the fiscal year 2023, this includes:  
o Excess of revenue over expenses of $529K 
o Estimated spending of $1.4M transition to College expenses and $1M of IT 

Infrastructure development expenses which are applied against the Board 
approved restricted net assets for the transition to the College 

BUDGET BASIS 
• Revenues: 

o Annual licensing fees remain unchanged 
 RCIC annual fees: $1,809.25 + HST 
 RISIA annual fees: $913 + HST 

o Projected licensee increase by 1,000 throughout the fiscal year inclusive of a 
10% attrition rate. There will be reduced growth in the licensee base as 
compared with the prior year. This is expected as the termination of the 
Immigration Practitioner Program (IPP) qualifying stream in June of 2021 in 
favour of the Graduate Diploma Programs resulted in a spike in applications that 
will not continue, notwithstanding that some IPP graduates will have until 
December 2025 to seek licensing 

o The total number of Entry-to-Practice Examination (EPE) candidates is expected 
to be substantially lower than the prior year, based on enrolment forecasts for 
the Graduate Diploma Program. This will result in lower examination fee revenue 
as compared with the prior year 

o Investment interest rate increases are anticipated as the Bank of Canada raises 
interest rates 

• Expenses: 
o Salary and benefits amounts increased to  acknowledge the high  COLA and 

position the College to compete in the current volatile labour marketplace, plus 
an amount to provide flexibility to address any incremental adjustments expected 
from the Job Description and Salary Banding Project currently under way to 
support federal pay equity requirements 

65



 

3/8 

o Board of Directors meetings and some licensee events, including an Annual 
General Meeting, to be held in-person  

o Professional Conduct Provision applied in accordance with GAAP 

  

66



 

4/8 

Summarized Statement of Operations 
Budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 
 

 
 
    

FY2023 FY2022 FY2022
Summarized Statement of Operations Budget Forecast $ % Budget
Revenues
Annual Fees 20,450,702     17,100,315     3,350,387        20% 15,462,711      

Examination Fees 649,300         2,077,688      (1,428,388)       -69% 1,867,000        

Interest Income 225,000         116,624         108,376          93% 52,500            

Specialization Program Fees 222,000         934,550         (712,550)         -76% 885,000          

Other Revenues 155,000         98,220           56,780            58% 100,000          

Total Revenues 21,702,002  20,327,397  1,374,605      7% 18,367,211   

Expenses
Office of the CEO 2,363,556      1,729,910      633,646          37% 1,598,488        

Human Resources 552,450         312,383         240,067          77% 341,280          

Professional Conduct 3,643,756      5,196,774      (1,553,018)       -30% 4,622,088        

Corporate Services 1,925,392      1,441,064      484,328          34% 1,581,047        

Information Technology 2,366,243      1,356,373      1,009,870        74% 1,549,299        

Professional Standards, Research, Education & Policy 3,540,762      2,031,051      1,509,711        74% 3,474,121        

Public Affairs & Communications 2,107,902      1,707,560      400,342          23% 1,883,235        

Registration 2,180,238      1,765,872      414,366          23% 2,512,823        

Governance, Board and AGM 581,027         230,135         350,892          152% 285,860          

Finance 1,911,592      1,322,004      589,588          45% 1,662,475        

Total Expenses 21,172,918  17,093,126  4,079,793      24% 19,510,716   
Excess/(Deficit):
revenues over expenses 529,084$     3,234,272$  (2,705,187)$  84% (1,143,505)$  

  Variance      
FY2023 Budget

vs FY2022 Forecast

67



 

5/8 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
 

 
  

Unrestricted
Invested in 

Capital Assets
Transition to 

College
IT Infrastructure 

Development

Directors' and 
Officers' Liability 

Coverage Total

Balance - Beginning as of November 23, 2021 7,075,177$       193,651$         2,068,414$     2,886,207$          4,000,000$           16,223,449$       
Excess of revenues over expenditures 
(FY2022 Forecast) 4,752,394         (126,705)          (848,417)        (543,000)             -                      3,234,272          

Balance - End of FY2022 projected 11,827,571       66,946             1,219,997      2,343,207            4,000,000             19,457,721         
Excess of revenues over expenditures  
(FY2023 Budget) 3,218,024         (296,500)          (1,390,520)     (1,001,920)          -                      529,084             

Purchase of capital assets (1,025,450)       1,025,450        -                    
Balance - End of FY2023 projected 14,020,145$  795,896$       (170,523)$    1,341,287$        4,000,000$         19,986,805$    

Restricted

68



 

6/8 

Proposed Capital Budget 
 

 
 
Amortization expenses: 

• Based on the proposed capital investment, the annual amortization expenses including 
existing capital assets will be $297K 

  
  

Office Construction & Buildout/Leasehold Improvements FY2023
Suite 1002
Construction & Materials 75,000$           
Plumbing \ water filtration 3,000$            
Security 23,000$           
IT 10,000$           
Furniture 80,000$           
Miscellaneous/unanticipated costs (25% contingency) 47,750$           

238,750$         
Suite 401
Construction & Materials 150,000$         
Plumbing \ water filtration 3,000$            
Security 23,000$           
IT 12,000$           
Furniture 220,000$         
Miscellaneous/unanticipated costs (25% contingency) 102,000$         

510,000$         

Total Office Construction & Buildout/Leasehold Improvements 748,750$       
Information Technology
IT Infrastructure & Equipment
Networking switching and routing 40,500$           
Firewalls & IT Security 20,000$           
Server Equipment / Software 20,000$           
Meeting room equipment 35,400$           
Computers and laptops 160,800$         
Total Information Technology 276,700$       

Total Capital Budget 1,025,450$    

69



 

7/8 

Revenues: 
 
Annual fees revenue: 

• RCIC annual fees: $1,809.25 + HST 
• RISIA annual fees: $913 + HST 
• Calculated based on estimated # of members in the chart below: 

 

 
 
 
Examination fees revenue: 
 

 
  
  
Interest income - $255K including: 

• Investment interest - $50K 
o Estimated interest is based on average rate of 0.68% on $7.4 million 

• Interest-bearing bank account - $175K 
o Estimated interest at rate of 1.25% on average bank balances of $14M  

Estimated # of Active licensees: RCIC RISIA Total
FY2023 - Beginning 11,498          366         
Deduct:
  Revocations (500)             0
  Resignations (500)             (20)          
  Deceased (10)               (2)           
Net licensees 10,488          344
Add: New licensees 1,000            10

FY2023 - Ending 11,488        354
Add: Licensees on LOA 200 7
Total 11,688          361

Annual fees revenue $20,130,084 $320,618 $20,450,702

Examination fees revenue
Estimated # 

of writers Exam Fees Total

RISIA EPE 80  $          500  $         40,000 

RCIC EPE (IPP & Graduate Diploma Program) 900  $          500  $       450,000 

RCIC (Specialization Program) 354  $          450  $       159,300 
Total Examination fees revenue  $    649,300 

70



 

8/8 

Specialization Program fees: 
• Based on 300 RCICs practicing before the IRB 
• Estimated 120 applicants for PLAR pathway and 180 applicants for Education pathway 

 

 
 
Other revenues - $155K including: 

• Regulatory offences fees - $10K 
• Late fees - $25K 
• Tribunal revenue - $120K with allowance for bad debts budgeted at 100% 

Specialization program revenue
Estimated # of 

applicants
Program 

fees Total

PLAR application 120  $         350  $      42,000 

Education Pathway 180  $      1,000  $    180,000 

Total Specialization program revenue  $  222,000 

71



1/1

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 

Re: 
Date: 

Board of Directors 

John Murray 
President & CEO 
Agenda item 6 Effective Date of Specialization Program 
June 3, 2022 

Summary: 
The Board of Directors is asked to consider setting the effective date for the Specialization 
Program as July 1, 2023.      

Requested Action: 
THAT: the date fixed by the Board pursuant to s. 10.4(a) of By-law 2021-2 be and is hereby fixed 
as July 1, 2023.  

Discussion/Analysis: 
Pursuant to s. 10 of the By-law, RCICs appearing before tribunals of the Immigration and Refugee 
Board of Canada (IRB) are required to successfully complete the College’s Specialization Program 
(SP) by June 30, 2022, or “such other date as may be fixed by the Board by resolution.”   

IRB data indicates certain licensees representing active IRB cases scheduled to be heard in July 
and August of 2022 will not complete the SP until the Fall of 2022. Rescheduling these matters 
will disrupt IRB operations. Requiring licensees to transfer client files to other authorized 
representatives could also cause hardship to vulnerable clients. The Board is asked to consider 
whether the public interest would be better served by extending the deadline for SP compliance 
to July 1, 2023, to permit all licensees currently registered in the SP sufficient time to complete 
the Education and/or Hybrid Pathways and at least one attempt at the SP exam. 

Attachment(s): None 

72



1/1

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 
Re: 
Date: 

Board of Directors 

John Murray, President & CEO  
Agenda item 7 Approval of Board Committee Terms of Reference 
May 18, 2022 

Summary: 
The Board of Directors is asked to approve the proposed Terms of Reference for the Finance and 
Audit Committee (FAC) and Governance and Nominating Committee (GNC) of the College.   

Requested Action: 

THAT: the Terms of Reference for the FAC and the GNC, each in the form attached 
hereto, be and are hereby approved, to be effective immediately. 

Discussion/Analysis: 

Each Council Board Committee reviewed and updated its terms of reference as needed as part of 
its annual committee workplan.  In November of 2021, Council By-laws were amended to comply 
with the College Act and all previous Board Committees, with the exception of the FAC and GNC, 
were wound down pending the development of College Act Regulations pursuant to s. 81(1)(g) 
of the College Act.  

Proposed Terms of Reference for each of the FAC and GNC are attached to this memorandum as 
Appendix A and Appendix B, respectively.  These draft Terms of Reference are based on those 
approved for the previous Council committees, updated to align with the College Act.   

Attachments: Appendix A – draft FAC Terms of Reference 
Appendix B – draft GNC Terms of Reference 

73



 

 

 

 

1/5 

 

[DRAFT: May 18, 2022] Board Committee Terms of Reference 
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Version: 
Last Modified:  2022-001 

May 18, 2022 

Purpose 

The Finance and Audit Committee (FAC) is responsible for overseeing and monitoring all 
significant aspects of the financial management of the College, providing support to the Board as 
it executes its oversight function. 

 

Duties and Responsibilities (Scope of Work)  

The Committee shall fulfill its responsibilities within the context of the following principles: 

 

Committee members will act in accordance with applicable Board policies. 

 

Committee members are expected to communicate among themselves in a direct, open 
and professional manner.  

 

Committee decisions will be made in accordance with the following principles of good 
governance:  

 
• Openness in decision-making and actions; 
• Integrity based on honesty and objectivity; and 
• Accountability for stewardship and performance. 

 

The Committee shall develop an annual Work Plan responsive to its responsibilities as set 
out in these Terms of Reference. It will be presented to the Board by the Committee Chair. 

 

74



[Draft: May 18, 2022]: Terms of Reference – Finance and Audit Committee    2022-001 | ©2022 

 

   2/5 

 

To fulfill its responsibilities the Committee shall: 

Financial Reporting: 
a) Review the Council’s quarterly financial statements, as prepared by management; 
b) Review the annual audit plan, annual audited financial statements and the annual 

Management Representation Letter and Engagement Letter provided to the Auditor and 
report thereon to the Board before such statements are approved by the Board.  

c) Receive from the Auditor reports pertaining to – and meet with the Auditor, as necessary, 
to discuss: 

a. their audit of the annual financial statements and their Independence Letter to 
determine that no management restrictions have been placed on the scope and 
extent of the audit examination by the Auditor or the reporting of their findings to 
the Committee; 

b. their assessment of the control environment and a report on any significant 
deviations or indications/detection of fraud and the corrective activity undertaken 
in respect thereto;   

d) Recommend to the Board the appointment of the Auditor, review the performance of the 
Auditor at least annually and recommend to the Board the remuneration and the terms of 
engagement of the Auditor; 
 

Budgeting and Financial Management: 
a) Review the financial position and financial performance, of the College to ensure that 

appropriate and timely information concerning the College’s financial position and 
performance is presented to the Board; 

b) Receive from management and review the College’s operating and capital budgets to 
ensure that they are appropriate to fulfill the mandate of the College; 

c) Review banking arrangements, signing authorities and cash management controls as 
needed to ensure that they are appropriate to the needs of the College.  

Investment Monitoring: 
a) Establish an investment policy for approval by the Board;  
b) review the investment policy at least annually and recommend any necessary 

amendments to the Board; 
c) Monitor investment transactions and results on a quarterly basis according to the 

investment policy and report quarterly on such investments to the Board. 
 

Risk and Uncertainty: 
The Committee shall: 
a) Review with management the College’s risk management framework, reporting to the 

board on any significant financial risks; 
b) Gain reasonable assurance that financial risk is being effectively managed in accordance 

with the risk management framework; and 
c) Annually receive and review a report from management on the adequacy of insurance 

coverage maintained by the College. 
 

Internal Control and Information Systems: 

75



[Draft: May 18, 2022]: Terms of Reference – Finance and Audit Committee    2022-001 | ©2022 

 

   3/5 

 

a) Review and obtain reasonable assurance that the internal control and information systems 
management has put in place are operating effectively to produce accurate, appropriate 
and timely management and financial information; 

b) At the request of the President & CEO, Chair of the Board, Chair of FAC or the Chair of 
the Governance and Nominating Committee (GNC), undertake investigations and other 
actions in relation to any suspected material non-compliance with accounting, internal 
control or auditing standards and report on such matters to the Board; 

c) The Committee shall periodically review the expense reports of the Chair of the Board and 
the President & CEO (CEO) for the fiscal year just ended and report on compliance with 
College expense policies.  

 

Compliance with Laws and Regulations: 
a) Review regular reports (Statutory Declarations and/or Compliance Certificates) from 

management with respect to the College’s compliance with laws and regulations having a 
material impact on the financial statements including tax and financial reporting laws and 
regulations; legal withholding requirements; other laws and regulations which expose the 
members of the Board to liability; 
 

Other Responsibilities: 
a) Investigate any matters that in the Committee’s discretion, fall within the Committee’s 

duties. 
 

Authority and Reporting 

The Committee has the authority required to carry out the “Duties and Responsibilities”. 

 

The Committee shall report its recommendations to the Board of Directors through written 
reports. 

 

Competencies of Committee Members 
• Knowledge of College structure, policies and culture (including its mission, vision, values, 

strategic plan, governance structure, role of staff and committees, programs and 
services) 

• Experience in and understanding of financial accounting, financial reporting and 
Canadian GAAP/international financial reporting standards applicable to not-for-profit 
corporations  

• Experience in risk management frameworks and their reporting.  
• (Strongly preferred) Be a member in good standing of an institute or association of 

accountants incorporated by or under an Act of the legislature of a province." 

Competencies of Committee Chair 

76



[Draft: May 18, 2022]: Terms of Reference – Finance and Audit Committee    2022-001 | ©2022 

 

   4/5 

 

• An understanding of corporate governance, typically acquired in a senior management 
role or as a corporate director; experience supported by recognized training in this area.  

• Previous experience as a Director of a public-interest entity or a medium or large non-
profit organization. 

 

Composition 

The Committee shall consist of a minimum of three (3) and a maximum of five (5) members.  

 

The Committee Chair, Committee Vice-Chair, and Committee members shall be nominated by 
the Governance and Nominating Committee and approved by the Board. The Chair, Vice-Chair 
and voting members shall be members of the Board. The Committee can appoint ad hoc non-
voting members to the Committee, as required, to assist in fulfilling its purpose. The Committee 
may, from time to time, invite guests to attend meetings. 

 

The Board Chair is entitled to attend and speak at all meetings but shall not be entitled to vote 
unless appointed as a member of the Committee.  

 

The CEO is entitled to attend and speak at every meeting of the Committee but shall not be 
entitled to vote. 

 

The CEO shall delegate a recording secretary who shall take minutes and assist in coordinating 
meetings and materials for the Committee and Sub-Committees if any.  

 

In the absence of the Committee Chair at any meeting or process of the Committee, the Vice- 
Chair shall assume the duties of the Chair. Any member of the Committee or Sub-Committee 
can be designated by the Chair or the Vice‐Chair as the Chair of any meeting. 

 

Meeting arrangements 

Meeting Agendas:  

The recording secretary will develop meeting agendas and supporting materials in consultation 
with the Committee Chair, other Board committees and management.  

 

77



[Draft: May 18, 2022]: Terms of Reference – Finance and Audit Committee    2022-001 | ©2022 

 

   5/5 

 

Meeting Materials: 

The recording secretary will ensure that all meeting materials are posted and distributed to 
Committee members five (5) business days in advance of meeting dates. However, special 
consideration may be given to urgent matters.  

 

The minutes of each meeting of the Committee shall be provided to each Committee member 
within five (5) business days from the meeting date.  

 

Frequency, Calling of Committee Meetings and Quorum: 

The Committee shall meet as required by its annual Work Plan. Meetings shall be held at the 
call of the Committee Chair or at the request of the CEO or two (2) members of the Committee. 

 

Quorum shall be a majority of the voting members of the Committee. Each voting member will 
be entitled to one (1) vote and the Committee Chair will not have a second or casting vote in 
the case of an equality of votes. A tied vote is a failed vote. 

 

In Camera Meetings: 

Committee members may, at their discretion, meet in a private session without staff members 
present, in accordance with applicable College governance policies.  

 

Review 

The Committee shall annually review these Terms of Reference, its Workplan and assess its 
own effectiveness in terms of ability to fulfill its purpose.  

 

Effective Date 

These Terms of Reference were approved by the Board of Directors on [Date] and are effective 
as of [Date].  

 

 

78



 

 

 

 

1/4 

 

[DRAFT: May 18, 2021] 
Board Committee Terms of Reference 

GOVERNANCE AND NOMINATING COMMITTEE 
 

Version: 
Last Modified:  2022-001 

May 18, 2022 

Purpose 

To oversee the development, implementation and management of the College’s governance 
processes including, without limitation, the nomination and election of Directors and the 
appointment of committee and working group members, and to make recommendations to the 
Board of Directors on these matters.  
 
Duties and Responsibilities  

The Committee shall fulfill its responsibilities within the context of the following principles: 

 

Committee members will act in accordance with applicable Board policies. 

 

Committee members are expected to communicate among themselves in a direct, open 
and professional manner.  

 

Committee decisions will be made in accordance with the following principles of good 
governance:  

 
• Openness in decision-making and actions; 
• Integrity based on honesty and objectivity; and 
• Accountability for stewardship and performance. 

 

The Committee shall develop an annual Work Plan responsive to its responsibilities as set 
out in these Terms of Reference. It will be presented to the Board by the Committee Chair. 

To fulfill its responsibilities and duties, the Committee shall: 

79



[Draft: May 18, 2022]: Terms of Reference – Governance and Nominating Committee    2022-001 | ©2022 

 

   2/4 

 

 
a) Review and recommend amendments to the By-laws, governance policies and policies 

applicable to licensees; 

 
b) Review and recommend amendments to the governance structure of the Board and the 

College including:  
•  

a. governance policies in respect of the Board;  
b. Terms of Reference of any committees of the Board, Tribunal Committees, other 

committees of the College or working groups; 
c. position descriptions for Directors and the Officers of the Board;  
d. the amount and nature of remuneration and any other payments to Directors and 

Officers of the Board;  
e. orientation for new Directors;   
f. succession planning for the Directors and Officers of the Board;  
g. the essential and desirable experience, skills and other characteristics of potential 

candidates for election to the Board and appointment to committees and working 
groups and as Officers of the Board, including annually in connection with the 
election of Directors and appointment of committees, and as needed in connection 
with the filling of occasional vacancies, taking into consideration the Board’s short-
term needs and long-term succession plans;  

h. Propose individuals to be appointed by as members of committees (including the 
Tribunal Committees) and working groups, Directors and Officers of the Board; 
and 

i. the annual assessment and evaluation of the performance of the Board, the Board 
Chair and Directors, and the committees of the Board; 

 
Authority and Reporting 

The Committee has the authority required to carry out the functions set out in the “Duties and 
Responsibilities”. 

 

The Committee shall report its recommendations to the Board of Directors through written 
reports.  

Competencies of Committee Members 
• Knowledge of College structure, policies and culture (including its mission, vision, values, 

strategic plan, governance structure, role of staff and committees, programs and services) 
• Board-level governance experience  
• Familiarity with legislative drafting techniques  
• Familiarity with immigration consulting business practices 

 
Competencies of Committee Chair 

• An understanding of corporate governance, typically acquired in a senior management 
role or as a corporate director; experience supported by recognized training in this area.  

80



[Draft: May 18, 2022]: Terms of Reference – Governance and Nominating Committee    2022-001 | ©2022 

 

   3/4 

 

• Previous experience as a Director of a public-interest entity or a medium or large non-
profit organization. 

 
Composition 

The Committee shall consist of a minimum of three (3) and a maximum of five (5) members.  

 

The Committee Chair, Committee Vice-Chair, and Committee members shall be nominated by the 
Governance and Nominating Committee and approved by the Board. The Chair, Vice-Chair and 
voting members shall be members of the Board. The Committee can appoint ad hoc non-voting 
members to the Committee, as required, to assist in fulfilling its purpose. The Committee may, 
from time to time, invite guests to attend meetings. 

 

The Board Chair is entitled to attend and speak at all meetings but shall not be entitled to vote, 
unless appointed as a member of the Committee.  

 

The President & Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is entitled to attend and speak at every meeting of 
the Committee but shall not be entitled to vote. 

 

The CEO shall delegate a recording secretary who shall take minutes and assist in coordinating 
meetings and materials for the Committee and Sub-Committees if any.  

 

In the absence of the Committee Chair at any meeting or process of the Committee, the Vice- 
Chair shall assume the duties of the Chair. Any member of the Committee or Sub-Committee can 
be designated by the Chair or the Vice‐Chair as the Chair of any meeting. 

 

Meeting arrangements 

Meeting Agendas:  

The recording secretary will develop meeting agendas and supporting materials in 
consultation with the Committee Chair, other Board committees and management.  

 

Meeting Materials: 

81



[Draft: May 18, 2022]: Terms of Reference – Governance and Nominating Committee    2022-001 | ©2022 

 

   4/4 

 

The recording secretary will ensure that all meeting materials are posted and distributed 
to Committee members five (5) business days in advance of meeting dates. However, 
special consideration may be given to urgent matters.  

 

The minutes of each meeting of the Committee shall be provided to each Committee 
member within five (5) business days from the meeting date.  
 

Frequency, Calling of Committee Meetings and Quorum: 

The Committee shall meet as required by its annual Work Plan. Meetings shall be held at 
the call of the Committee Chair or at the request of the CEO or two (2) members of the 
Committee. 
 
Quorum shall be a majority of the voting members of the Committee. Each voting member 
will be entitled to one (1) vote and the Committee Chair will not have a second or casting 
vote in the case of an equality of votes. A tied vote is a failed vote. 

 
In Camera Meetings: 

Committee members may, at their discretion, meet in a private session without staff members 
present, in accordance with applicable College governance policies.  

 

Review 

The Committee shall annually review these Terms of Reference, its Workplan and assess its own 
effectiveness in terms of ability to fulfil its purpose.  

 

Effective Date 

These Terms of Reference were approved by the Board of Directors on [Date] and are effective 
as of [Date].  

82



1/3

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 
Re: 
Date: 

Board of Directors 

Beata Pawlowska, Director of Professional Standards, Research, Education and Policy 
Agenda item 8 RCIC Mentoring Program – Working Group  
May 20, 2022 

Summary: 
The Board of Directors is asked to approve the Terms of Reference for the Mentoring Working 
Group (MWG) and appoint RCIC licensees as members to English-language and French-language 
panels of the MWG. The Board is also asked to approve the proposed creation of a future RISIA 
panel for the MWG to comprise both English-speaking and French-speaking RISIA licensees.  

Requested Action: 

THAT:  (1) the MWG Terms of Reference, in the form attached hereto as Appendix A, be
and are hereby approved; 

(2) the individuals listed on Appendix B hereto, be and are hereby appointed as
members of the MWG, effective as of March 1, 2022, each to serve until successors
are appointed; and

(3) College staff be and are hereby authorized and directed to create a RISIA panel
of the MWG as needed.

Discussion/Analysis: 
Background: The lack of pre-licensing practical experience was identified as a significant gap in 
the licencing of Canadian immigration and citizenship consultants.  Research indicated that the 
structure of the profession, with its preponderance of sole and part-time practitioners, did not 
lend itself to traditional articling or “pupilage” models.  As an alternative, a period of mandatory 
mentoring of new entrants by an experienced practitioner can be an invaluable way to standardize 
the quality of practice among both RCICs and RISIAs. Accordingly, the Council Board approved 
the development of a comprehensive mentoring program for College licensees. 

83



 

2/3 

Goal: the College’s forthcoming Mentoring Program will offer 3 streams: (1) Supervised Practice 
(to which all new entrants will be subject); (2) Voluntary (open to all licensees throughout their 
careers); and (3) Remedial (to be imposed on non-compliant/incompetent licensees in 
appropriate circumstances). Together the streams form a holistic mentoring model that will 
ensure that RCICs and RISIAs have access to guidance and expertise throughout their careers.  
 
Program Development: In accordance with the workplan for development of the Mentoring 
Program, the Professional Standards, Research, Education and Policy department of the College 
(PREP) has formed the MWG. The scope of work for the MWG includes the creation of case-based 
assessments and evaluations for the Mentoring Program’s three streams. MWG members will play 
an advisory role; providing ongoing insight and consultation on key aspects of program design 
and development to PREP staff and consultants. Proposed Terms of reference for the MWG are 
attached to this memorandum as Appendix A.   
 
The MWG comprises a panel of RCIC licensees who practice primarily in English and a panel of 
RCIC licensees who practice primarily in French. The formation of an additional panel of RISIA 
licensees comprising both French and English-speaking licensees, is in progress. The 
simultaneous creation of content in both official languages will ensure that the Mentoring Program 
will meet the unique needs of both French and English licensees.  
 
A call for RCIC MWG members was circulated to all licensees in January 2022, with a maximum 
of 6 (six) members per group. In addition to submission of an updated CV, selection criteria 
required that applicants be: 
 

• Active and In Good Standing;  
• Be licensed for a minimum of 5 years;  
• Have experience with developing supervised practice models and/or   

experience in supervision;  
• Available to commit approximately 4 hours monthly;  
• Possess strong written communication skills  

 
In addition to meeting the above criteria, those applicants with exposure to or experience in 
mentoring, curriculum development, and/or teaching were provided additional consideration. Any 
licensee with a previous finding of professional misconduct by the Discipline Committee or an 
ongoing professional conduct investigation was removed from consideration. 
 
Applicants were reviewed by the Registration Department and Professional Conduct Department 
to confirm they met the above criteria. Successful applicants included those with previous 
Council/College service as subject-matter experts, as well as licensees without previous 
Council/College service. Additional attention was given to gender balance, diversity and broad 
geographic representation.   A list of proposed RCIC MWG members is attached to this 
memorandum as Appendix B.  
 

84



 

3/3 

French and English MWG meetings commenced in March 2022, and are scheduled on a biweekly 
basis until January 2023. Mentoring Program staff and consultants attend each meeting, and 
other College stakeholders – including, but not limited to, PREP staff – may attend meetings, as 
needed. Mentoring Program staff prepare and distribute agendas in advance, take minutes and 
assist in coordinating meetings and materials for the MWG. MWG meetings are chaired  by a 
designated Mentoring Program staff member.  
 
Content produced by the MWG is subjected to ongoing quality assurance conducted by a bilingual 
subject-matter expert who is also a practicing lawyer in the field of Immigration and Citizenship 
Law.  
 
Attachment(s):   

• Appendix A. Terms of Reference (FR/EN) 
• Appendix B. Working Group Members List (FR/EN) 

85



 

 

 

 

1/2 

 

[DRAFT: May 18, 2022] Terms of Reference 
RCIC MENTORING PROGRAM  

WORKING GROUP 
Version: 

Last Modified:  2022-001 
May 18, 2022 

 
Purpose  
The Working Group is responsible for providing insight and guidance in the ongoing 
development of the College’s Mentoring Program. Specifically, members are responsible for 
validating and advising on competency-based assessment structure(s) and evaluation(s) and 
produce case-based assessments.   
 
Duties and Responsibilities (Scope of Work)  
 
The Working Group shall fulfill its responsibilities within the context of the following principles:  
 

• Working Group members will act in accordance with the Council’s Code of 
Professional Conduct and Code of Professional Ethics and College policies; 

• Working Group members are expected to communicate among themselves in a 
direct, open and professional manner at all times.  

 
To fulfill its responsibilities and duties to the educational development of the Mentoring Program 
within the required timelines related to launch dates, and to ensure timely completion of these 
deliverables, the Working Group shall:  
 

• Promptly attend bi-weekly 2-hour scheduled Working Group meetings (March 
2022 – January 2023); 

• Review and validate assessment model(s); 
• Select, while citing rationale, Areas of Practice Expertise foci for Cases; 
• Develop program materials and educational materials, including but not limited 

to, assessments and assessment tools; 
• Provide direction and guidance for stream-related assessments and program 

components, while citing rationale; 
• Ensure adherence and alignment to Key Performance Indicators in the 

development of Cases; 
• Perform quality assurance (QA) on Cases and revise accordingly; 
• Advise on Mentor and Mentee Orientation Materials and Program Resources.  

 
 
 
 
Composition 

86



[Draft: May 18, 2022]: Terms of Reference RCIC Mentoring Program Working Group  
 

 2022-001 | ©2021 

 

   2/2 

 

 
The Working Group shall consist of 6 RCIC members.  
 
Mentoring Program staff will be in attendance, and may invite College stakeholders – including, 
but not limited to: Professional Standards, Research, Education and Policy Department (PREP) 
staff and faculty – to attend meetings, as needed.  
 
Mentoring Program staff will take minutes and assist in coordinating meetings and materials for 
the Working Group. The Working Group Chair will be a designated Mentoring Program staff 
member.  
 
Meetings 
 
Meeting Agendas:  
Mentoring Program staff will develop meeting agendas in consultation with the designated 
Working Group Chair, Working Group members, and input from other relevant PREP staff and 
stakeholder departments. Meeting Agendas will be circulated via email to Working Group 
Members one (1) day in advance of meeting dates.  
 
If a Working Member will be absent from Meeting, they shall endeavor to provide no less than 
one (1) day advance notice.  
 
Meeting Materials:  
Mentoring Program staff will provide Working Group members templates to facilitate the 
collaborative creation of educational materials within Working Group meetings.  
 
Mentoring Program staff may provide Working Group members relevant materials to review in 
preparation for Working Group meetings. These materials will be sent on a bi-weekly basis – 
i.e., no later than five (5) days prior to the scheduled meeting where materials are applicable. 
 
Deliverables and Reporting  
 
The designated Working Group Meeting Chair (Mentoring Program Staff member) will record 
minutes within each meeting agenda, and will maintain records/storage of educational materials 
in development.  
 
In the event that a Working Group Member is absent from a meeting, the agenda and any 
related materials in progress will be circulated to the absent member for review in preparation 
for the next meeting. 
 

Relevant PREP stakeholders may attend Working Group Meetings to discuss deliverables and 
ensure their timely completion. In particular, a PREP faculty designate may attend meetings, 
pending availability, to collaborate and review progress and quality of case development(s).  

87



 

 

 

 

1/1 

 

RCIC MENTORING PROGRAM  
WORKING GROUP  

MEMBERS LIST 
May 18, 2022 

   

 

EN 
• Holly Gracey, R411287 
• Mia Loebach – Readings, R414671 
• Frederick Li, R506683 
• Jean Toews, R507061 
• Mihaela Kerezova, R508968 

 

FR 
• Selin Deravedisyan-Adam, R409687 
• Sadek Ould, R527858 
• Micheline Khoury, R518754 
• Charlemagne Mfera, R508538 
• Joseph Youssef Zakhour, R421983 

 

88



1/3

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 
Re: 
Date: 

Board of Directors 

Beata Pawlowska, Director of Professional Standards, Research, Education and Policy 
Agenda item 8 Professional Standards of Practice Working Group  
May 18, 2022 

Summary: 
The Board of Directors is asked to approve the Terms of Reference for the Professional Standards 
of Practice Working Group (PSPWG) and appoint members to the PSPWG. 

Requested Action: 

THAT:  (1) the PSPWG Terms of Reference, in the form attached hereto as Appendix A,
be and are hereby approved; and 

(2) the individuals listed on Appendix B hereto, be and are hereby appointed as
members of the PSPWG, effective as of May 12, 2022, each to serve until
successors are appointed.

Discussion/Analysis: 
The Professional Standards, Research, Education and Policy (PREP) department of the College 
formed the PSPWG to support the next phase in the ongoing development of professional 
Standards of Practice necessary to underpin the College’s forthcoming Quality Management 
Program.  The PSPWG comprises 9 licensees drawn from volunteers who practice in various 
provinces and represent a range of practice areas. 

The proposed scope of work for this Working Group is set out in the draft Terms of Reference 
attached to this memorandum as Appendix A.  In summary, the PSPWG will, inter alia, review 
practices and standards in other jurisdictions, develop an initial draft of the Professional Standards 
of Practice document, refine it based on feedback from four (4) Focus Groups to be conducted in 
the Spring and Summer of 2022, assist with the development and conduct of a survey of licensees 
to validate the draft, and prepare a final report proposing draft Standards of Practice, ultimately 
for Board approval.   

Working Group and Focus Group meetings will be facilitated by M. Nayer, Ph.D, a subject matter 
expert retained by the College and overseen by the Professional Standards of Practice Steering 

89



 

2/3 

Committee (Steering Committee) a group comprising the College’s PREP, Registration and 
Professional Conduct Directors.  
 
Background: “Standards of Practice” is a broad term that includes both published and 
unpublished current standards of a profession. Developed by consensus, Standards of Practice 
reflect the current values of the profession.  
 
Standards generally address topics where risks to the public may arise.  A Standards of Practice 
document sets out the generally-accepted behaviours expected of practitioners for each particular 
aspect of their work. It contains criteria that the profession agrees are “essential” to competent, 
ethical practice.  
 
Process/Status: The Council Board of Directors approved development of the Quality 
Management Program in principle, a consultant was engaged, and a workplan was developed by 
the Steering Committee in consultation with the consultant. A call for Working Group and Focus 
Group Members was sent to all licensees in early 2022. Licensees must meet the following criteria 
to be considered:  
 

•   Be “active” and In Good Standing, with at least 3 years of practice;  
•   Not be subject to a finding of professional misconduct by the Discipline Committee;  
•   Be available to engage in the required remote meetings (scheduled between May and      

  July 2022);   
•   Have strong verbal communication skills; and  
•   Reside in Canada (to ensure the ability to attend a schedule of live meetings).  

 
In addition to the above, additional information regarding exposure to or experience in regulatory 
activities, supervisory duties, and/or teaching was collected and reviewed.   Any licensee with a 
previous finding of professional misconduct by the Discipline Committee or an ongoing 
professional conduct investigation was removed from consideration. 
 
A short list of applicants was vetted by PREP, Registration Department and Professional Conduct 
Department staff. Nine applicants were selected to serve on the PSPWG.  These individuals 
represent a variety of client communities, areas of practice, years licensed by the College, and 
geographic locations within Canada. These licensees also hold a wealth of experience in other 
professional areas, including law, management, and education. A list of the proposed members 
of the PSPWG in attached to this memorandum as Appendix B. 
 
A schedule of three (3) Working Group meetings has been set (commencing May 12, 2022), with 
work required by members prior to each meeting. Once an initial draft has been prepared, 4 
Focus Groups will meet to provide input and ensure project transparency. Three (3) Focus Groups 
will work in English, and one (1) will work in French. 
  
Attachment(s):   
 

90



 

3/3 

• Appendix A. Terms of Reference 
• Appendix B. Working Group Members List  

 

91



 

 

 

 

1/2 

 

[DRAFT: May 9, 2022] Terms of Reference 
PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS OF PRACTICE 

 WORKING GROUP 
Version: 

Last Modified:  2022-001 
May 9, 2022 

  
Purpose  
  
The Working Group is responsible for selecting the content for the Standards of Practice 
document. Professional practice standards define what is expected of licensees and provide 
clarity about their responsibilities for the licensees and the public.   
  
Responsibilities and Objective  
  
The objective of the Working Group is to develop a Standards of Practice document.  
  
The Working Group is responsible for ensuring the relevant principles and standards of the 
following College documents are reviewed for inclusion:  
  

• Proposed Code of Professional Conduct for College of Immigration and   
          Citizenship Consultants Licensees (Federal Regulation);  

• College and Immigration and Citizenship Consultants Act (Federal legislation);  
• RCIC Code of Professional Ethics (College Regulation);  
• RISIA Code of Ethics (College Regulation);  
• Essential Competencies for RCICs (College); and  
• Essential Competencies for RISIAs (College).  

  
Composition  
  
The Working Group shall consist of 8-10 licensees of the College representing geographic and 
practice segments.   
  
Meetings  
  
Three meetings will take place:   

• Meeting 1: to introduce the project and home exercise;  
• Meeting 2: to review results of home exercise; and  
• Meeting 3: to review results of the focus groups.  

 

92



[Draft: May 9, 2022]: Terms of Reference Professional Standards of Practice Working 
Group  
 

 2022-001 | ©2021 

 

   2/2 

 

If a Working Group Member is absent from a meeting, the agenda and any related materials in 
progress will be circulated to the absent member for review in preparation for the next 
meeting.  
    
Tasks:  
  

• Before Meeting 1, review a briefing note on Standards of Practice (about 30-45 
minutes).  

• Attend Meeting 1 (about 1.5 hours) for an introduction to the development of 
Standards of Practice and instructions for the next activity.   

• After Meeting 1, complete the at-home exercise (about 2 hours) of reviewing 
various standards.   

• Meeting 2: Review the at-home exercise and select topics for standards (about 3 
hours).   

• After Meeting 2, review a Standards of Practice draft and prepare feedback 
(about 2 hours).  

• After Focus Groups meet, review their feedback and prepare your comments 
(about 2 hours)  

• Meeting 3: Discuss Focus Groups’ feedback (about 2-3 hrs)  
  
Authority and Reporting  
  
The Steering Committee will provide strategic oversight to the Working Group to ensure the 
Standards Practice document protects the public by maintaining the highest immigration and 
citizenship consultant standards of professional conduct and competence.   
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

93



 

 

 

 

1/1 

 

PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS OF PRACTICE 
 WORKING GROUP  

MEMBERS LIST 
May 18, 2022 

   

  
 

• Ahmad Junaid Salik, R509291 
• Fady Kardous, R521829 
• Iouri Olinik, R506848 
• Jaswinder Dilawari, R526260 
• John George Edwards, R410175 
• Michael Chan Len Chin, R516283 
• Michael Embaie, R518754 
• Robert Donald Stevens, R419735 
• Stella Toyin Jonah, R515087 

 

94



1/4

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 
Re: 
Date: 

Board of Directors 

Michael Huynh, Director, Professional Conduct 
Agenda item 9 Appointment of Tribunal Committee Members 
May 13, 2022 

Summary: 
The Board of Directors is requested to approve the appointment of returning and additional 
members to the Tribunal Committees of the College.  

Requested Action: 
THAT: The individuals set out below, be and are hereby appointed or re-appointed as 

Tribunal Committee members, each to serve until a successor is appointed. 

Discussion/Analysis: 
The College’s Tribunal Committees render decisions on professional conduct and licensing 
matters. The By-laws require that Tribunal Committee members be appointed or re-appointed by 
the Board of Directors each year. 

At the end of each year, the Chair of the Tribunal Committees and Tribunal Office staff assess 
the needs of the Tribunal Committees and recruit additional members. A solicitation is sent to all 
licensees and circulated more broadly should the Tribunal Committees also require Public (non-
licensee) Representatives. A selection committee, comprising the Chair of the Tribunal 
Committees; Manager, Tribunals; and President & CEO, reviews applications, interviews and 
recommends candidates to the Board for appointment or re-appointment based on established 
criteria, including expertise and prior adjudicative experience. 

The Tribunal Committees comprise four separate committees: the Complaints Committee, the 
Discipline Committee, the Fitness to Practise Committee, and the Registrar Appeal Committee. 
Pursuant to the College Act, Tribunal Committee members are divided in two groups, those that 
serve on the Complaints Committee, and those that may serve on any of the latter three 
committees.  

Complaints Committee 

95



 

2/4 

The Complaints Committee reviews complaints and determines which should be referred to a full 
disciplinary hearing. Complaints Committee members typically sit as panels of three, where at 
least one panel member is a licensee (i.e., RCIC or RISIA), and one panel member is a Public 
Representative.   
 
Re-appointments 
 
The individuals set out below are recommended for re-appointment to the Complaints Committee 
for a one-year term, or until successors are appointed: 
 
(B) indicates English-French Bilingual 
 
Candidate Role 
Li Feng RCIC – Member 
Sol Gombinsky RCIC – Member 
Izabela Kowalewski RCIC – Member 
Souheila Lebane RCIC – Member (B) 
Hjalmar Enrique Leon RCIC – Member 
Hadi Mansouri RCIC – Member (B) 
Bruce Perreault RCIC – Member 
Carl Wurfel RCIC – Member 
Gabriel Chand Public Representative – Member 
Hector Cowan Public Representative – Member (B) 
Daniela Lima Public Representative – Member 
Alan Martin  Public Representative – Member (B) 
Melvin Thibodeau Public Representative – Member (B) 
Sherry Wiebe Public Representative – Member 

 
 
Discipline, Fitness to Practise and Registrar Appeal Committees 
 
The Discipline, Fitness to Practise and Registrar Appeal Committees perform a more formal 
adjudicative function and make final decisions on professionalism and competence (Discipline), 
physical and mental capacity (Fitness to Practise), and licensing (Registrar Appeal), respectively.  
 
These Committees typically sit in panels of three, where at least one panel member is a licensee 
(i.e., RCIC or RISIA), and one panel member is a Public Representative.  Each panel is led by the 
Tribunal Committees Chair, Senior Vice-Chair or Vice-Chair, who also help establish the rules of 
procedure and practice guidelines, review the Tribunal Committees’ overall performance, and 
assess resource and training needs. The Chair, Senior Vice-Chair, and other Vice Chairs are also 
tasked with greater adjudicative responsibilities than members and may sit singly to hear and 
decide on motions or other procedural matters.  
 

96



 

3/4 

 
New appointments 
 
The individuals set out below are recommended as new appointments to the Tribunal Committees 
to serve on the Discipline, Fitness to Practise, and Registrar Appeal Committees for a one-year 
term, or until successors are appointed: 
 
David Thomas:  Vice-Chair – Public Representative 
David Thomas, British Columbia, is a lawyer and previously served as the Chairperson of the 
Canadian Human Rights Tribunal. He currently serves as the Vice-Chairperson for the Council of 
Federal Tribunal Chairs. Mr. Thomas is English-French bilingual. 
 
Marcel Mongeon: Vice-Chair – Public Representative 
Marcel Mongeon, Ontario, is a lawyer and has served as a Tribunal Member on the Financial 
Services Commission of Ontario and as the Discipline Committee Chairperson of the College of 
Patent Agents & Trademark Agents.  He is also the President for the ADR Institute of Ontario. Mr. 
Mongeon is English-French bilingual.  
 
Richard Austin: Member – Public Representative 
Richard Austin, Ontario, is a lawyer and has served on several adjudicative tribunals including the 
disciplinary committees of the Investment Industry Regulatory Organization of Canada, the 
Mutual Fund Dealers Association of Canada, and the Professional Engineers of Ontario, as well as 
on the Administrative Tribunal for the City of Toronto.  
 
Annie Beaudoin: Member – RCIC 
Annie Beaudoin has been an RCIC since February 2020 and currently resides in the US.  She has 
worked with the Canadian Consulate General for over fourteen years, twelve of those years as 
an Immigration Officer. Ms. Beaudoin is a course designer and professor in immigration law at 
the University of Montreal. Ms. Beaudoin is English-French bilingual. 
 
 
Re-appointments 
 
The individuals set out below are recommended for re-appointment to the Discipline, Registrar’s 
Appeal and Fitness to Practise Committees for a one-year term or until successors are 
appointed: 
 
  
Candidate  Role  
Cindy Ramkissoon-Shears  RCIC - Chairperson 
Laurie Sanford  Public Representative, Senior Vice-Chair 
Ken Atkinson   Public Representative, Vice-Chair 
Eli Fellman  Public Representative, Vice-Chair 

97



 

4/4 

Susan Joyce Heakes  Public Representative, Vice-Chair 
Mohammed Allouche  RCIC – Member (B) 
Sylvie Bertrand   RCIC - Member (B) 
Ben Fok  RCIC - Member  
Satpaul Singh Johal  RCIC - Member  
John Lironi  RCIC - Member  
Rakesh Mehta  RCIC - Member  
Sandrine Ponpon-Kataully  RCIC – Member (B) 
Perminder Sidhu  RCIC - Member  
Joseph Anthony (Tony) Baker  Public Representative – Member 
Vicenzina (Enza) Buffa  Public Representative – Member 
Alisa Chaplick  Public Representative – Member 
Louis-Rene Gagnon  Public Representative – Member (B) 
Teddy Kwan  Public Representative – Member 
Joanne Lau  Public Representative – Member 
Sonia Light  Public Representative – Member 
Sabita Maraj  Public Representative – Member 
Guy Marcel Nono  Public Representative – Member (B) 
Alicia Peters  Public Representative – Member 
Andrea Sesum  Public Representative – Member 
Oriana Trombetti  Public Representative – Member 
 
 
 
 

98



1/1

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 
Re: 
Date: 

Board of Directors 

Michael Huynh, Director, Professional Conduct  
Agenda item 10 Appointment of Independent Complaints Review Officer 
May 13, 2022 

Summary: 
The Board of Directors is requested to approve the appointment of Lai-King Hum, as the College’s 
Independent Complaints Review Officer (ICRO). 

Requested Action: 

THAT: Lai-King Hum, be and is hereby appointed as the ICRO for the College, to hold 
such office until a successor is appointed. 

Discussion/Analysis: 
Section 56.7 of By-law 2021-2 requires that the Board appoint an ICRO to review the handling of 
licensee complaints that were not referred to a formal hearing before the Discipline Committee. 
The duties of the ICRO are set out in detail in section 27 of the By-law. 

The previous ICRO, Ms. Avvy Go, resigned in late 2021 upon appointment as a judge of the 
Federal Court of Canada.  The position was advertised in December 2021 and candidates were 
interviewed by J. Murray, President & CEO; M. Huynh, Director, Professional Conduct; 
C. Gelbloom, Manager, Tribunals; and M. Katzin, Manager, HR in February 2022.

After deliberation, the selection committee agreed unanimously that Ms. Hum should be 
recommended for appointment as ICRO. Ms. Hum is an English-French bilingual lawyer. In 
addition to managing her own firm, she serves as a Deputy Judge of the Superior Court of Justice 
(Small Claims Court), Discrimination and Harassment Counsel for the Law Society of Ontario, and 
Independent Legal Counsel for the Ontario College of Teachers. She has previously served on the 
Condominium Authority Tribunal (Ontario) and as Bilingual Counsel for the Law Society of 
Ontario’s Complaints Resolution Department.  

Ms. Hum has agreed to serve in this role if appointed by the Board of Directors. 

99


	Open Meeting EN - W page numbers.pdf
	4(b) Approval of Audited Statements-EN.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	Summary:
	Requested Action:
	THAT:
	[1] the draft audited annual financial statements of the Council for the period ended November 22, 2021, together with the Independent Auditors Report thereon, each in the form presented to the Board, be and are hereby approved; and
	[2]  any two Directors be and are hereby authorized to sign the Statement of Financial Position forming part of such financial statements to evidence such approval.
	Discussion/Analysis:

	4(a) Appointment of Auditors-EN.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	Summary:
	Requested Action:
	THAT:
	[1] Goodman Mintz, LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants, be and are hereby appointed as the Auditors of the College for the financial year the College ending June 30, 2022.
	Discussion/Analysis:

	5(a) College Budget Memo-EN.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	Summary:
	Requested Action:
	THAT: the draft budget for the financial year of the College ending June 30, 2023, in the form attached hereto, be and is hereby approved.
	Discussion/Analysis:

	5(b)F2023 Budget Summary Package Public Meeting V2-EN.pdf
	Introduction
	Budget Basis

	BOD Meeting Memo - SP Effective Date-EN.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	Summary:
	Requested Action:
	Discussion/Analysis:

	7(a) GNC_FAC TOR Memo-EN.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	Summary:
	Requested Action:
	THAT:  the Terms of Reference for the FAC and the GNC, each in the form attached
	Discussion/Analysis:

	7(a)(i) Board FAC Terms of Reference May 18 2022_EN.pdf
	[DRAFT: May 18, 2022] Board Committee Terms of Reference FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

	8(a)Memorandum_Mentoring Working Group (JWM)-EN.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	Summary:
	Requested Action:
	Discussion/Analysis:

	8(ai) Appendix A. TOR. MWG_EN.pdf
	[DRAFT: May 18, 2022] Terms of ReferenceRCIC MENTORING PROGRAM 
	WORKING GROUP

	8(a)(ii) Appendix B. MWG Members List-EN.pdf
	RCIC MENTORING PROGRAM 
	WORKING GROUP 
	MEMBERS LIST

	8(b) Memorandum_PSP Working Group (JWM)-EN.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	Summary:
	Requested Action:
	Discussion/Analysis:

	8(b)(i) Appendix A. TOR. PSW Group_EN.pdf
	[DRAFT: May 9, 2022] Terms of ReferencePROFESSIONAL STANDARDS OF PRACTICE
	 WORKING GROUP

	8(c)(ii) Appendix B. PSW Group Members List-EN.pdf
	PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS OF PRACTICE
	 WORKING GROUP 
	MEMBERS LIST

	9 Tribunal Member Appointment Memo-EN.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	Summary:
	Requested Action:
	THAT:  The individuals set out below, be and are hereby appointed or re-appointed as Tribunal Committee members, each to serve until a successor is appointed.
	Discussion/Analysis:

	10 ICRO Appointment Memo-EN.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	Summary:
	Requested Action:
	THAT: Lai-King Hum, be and is hereby appointed as the ICRO for the College, to hold such office until a successor is appointed.
	Discussion/Analysis:


	College - June _ 2022 Board Meeting Agenda - Open EN.pdf
	Board of Directors In-Person/Zoom Meeting
	June 10, 2022, 10:30 am
	Board of Directors:
	10:30 am
	(5 mins)



	College - June _ 2022 Board Meeting Agenda - Open EN.pdf
	Board of Directors In-Person/Zoom Meeting
	June 10, 2022, 10:30 am
	Board of Directors:
	10:30 am
	(5 mins)






